

1Integrate

Quickstart Guide

Product Version: v 5.1

Document Version: v 1.0

Document Date: 24/01/2025

Copyright 2025 1 Spatial plc and its affiliates.

All rights reserved. Other trademarks are registered trademarks and the properties of their respective owners.

No part of this document or any information appertaining to its content may be used, stored, reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, taping, information storage systems, without the prior permission of 1Spatial plc.

1Spatial Unit F7, Stirling House Cambridge Innovation Park Denny End Road Waterbeach Cambridge CB25 9PB United Kingdom **Phone:** +44 (0)1223 420414 **Fax:** +44 (0)1223 420044

Web: www.1spatial.com

Every effort has been made to ensure that the information contained in this document is accurate at the time of printing. However, the software described in this document is subject to continuous development and improvement. 1Spatial plc reserves the right to change the specification of the software. 1Spatial plc accepts no liability for any loss or damage arising from use of any information contained in this document.

Contents

1	Introduction	1
	Getting Started	. 1
	Documentation Structure	. 1
	Data Stores	. 1
	Schemas	. 1
	Rules and Actions	2
	Built-ins	2
	Sessions	2
	Additional Capabilities	2
	Dashboard	2
	Administration	. 2
	API	2
	Performance Tips	2
	Installation and Configuration	2
	Resources	. 3
	Overview	4
	Control	4
	Correct	4
	Transform	. 4
	Automate	4
	Scalable	. 5
	Interface	6
	Interface Sections	6

1. Header	6
2. Sidebar	6
3. Navigation Pane	6
4. Workspace Toolbar	7
5. Workspace	7
6. Right-hand Panel	8
Context Menu	
Light and Dark Themes	8
Items and Folders	10
Creating Objects	10
Moving, Copying, and Shortcuts	10
Bookmarks	10
Deleting and the Recycle Bin	11
Focus/Unfocus	11
Search and Filter	11
Quickstart	13
General 1Integrate Flow	13
"Create a Data Store" on page 1	13
"Create a Rule" on page 1	
"Create an Action" on page 1	13
"Create a Session" on page 1	14
"Run a Session" on page 1	14
Create a Data Store	15
Create a Rule	18
Create an Action	21
Create a Session	24
Run a Session	

11	Glossary	 29
•••	oloccaly	



The 1Integrate documentation offers information about the installation, configuration, administration, and use of 1Integrate.

Note: If you currently have 1 Integrate version 3.4 or earlier and want to see the benefits of upgrading to version 4 and newer, or how to upgrade, please see the <u>Migration Guide</u>.

Training in the use of 1Integrate is available. For more information please contact 1Spatial <u>support</u>.

Getting Started

Before moving on to the detailed documentation we recommend you read the pages in this section to familiarise yourself with:

- The 1Integrate product "Overview" on page 4
- Navigating the 1Integrate Interface
- Understanding the creation and structure of "Items and Folders" on page 10
- The "Quickstart" on page 13 page is an optional reference to quickly onboard with 1Integrate

Documentation Structure

The full suite of documentation is structured whereby the sections from Data Stores to Sessions cover the core capabilities for users, and the remaining topics cover other elements of 1Integrate.

Data Stores

Data Stores refer to an external source of data that can be read from or written to. These can be files that are uploaded and downloaded or services or databases that are connected to remotely.

Schemas

Schemas are the definitions of the structure of data accessed via a Data Store. The source schema describes the data being accessed. The target schema is the structure used in the 1Integrate session, which is often the same as the source schema, but could be mapped to a different structure.

1 Introduction

Rules and Actions

Rules and Actions are semantically constructed tasks that are run on data. Rules are defined validation checks and Actions are defined processes that change or report on the data.

Built-ins

Built-ins are used within Rules and Actions and are either functions that perform a specific calculation, or operations that perform a specific task.

Sessions

Sessions are used to control all data processing tasks. These can be configured to step through a process, allowing manual results checking at predefined points in the process.

Additional Capabilities

Additional Capabilities contains abstract geospatial concepts that 1 Integrate has the capability to work on rather than specific features.

Dashboard

The Dashboard includes information about the Engines and Interface running in the Grid.

Administration

Administration overs the options and processes that administrator users have for using 1Integrate.

API

The API section holds information on the REST API integration. Which allows 1 Integrate functionality to be shared or utilised with other products or programs.

Performance Tips

Performance Tips give advice on getting the best performance when running sessions.

Installation and Configuration

Installation and Configuration has all the necessary information on setting up or upgrading 1Integrate.

Resources

Resources contains reference materials and PDFs of specific topics or processes.

Overview

1 Integrate is a tool to control, correct, and transform spatial data in an automated and scalable way.

Control

Rules can be created to systematically check and validate data.

Where a user may not be able to see errors when checking data, Rules can identify data that:

- Doesn't connect where needed
- Overlaps
- Is misclassified
- Has incompatible geometries
- And much more...

Correct

After validating data, inconsistencies, errors, and duplicates may have been found.

Actions can be created to correct these as soon as they're found, making sure that the data conforms to the requirements you have set.

This will keep costly mistakes from being made, ensuring that decisions can be made with confidence in the data.

Transform

Even with data that is "correct", it may benefit from being enhanced or transformed.

Multiple data sources can be brought together to further define shared features. This could be adding more specific address properties to a feature, increasing the geometric resolution of more general spatial data, or transforming one structure to another using business Rules to map objects and attributes.

Automate

Data can be manually corrected or enhanced, but that can be time consuming.

- 4 -

The robust Rules and Actions within 1 Integrate can be automated to allow time to be reinvested elsewhere.

Partitioning data can help to automate large data sets at a lower processing cost.

Additionally, "Production Mode" allows for fast, efficient automation to streamline tasks.

Scalable

1 Integrate allows for rule sets that can be shared between users, reused across projects, and created quickly through reusable content, templates, and specialised built-in functions and operations.

Focusing on making data smarter means that users won't have to work harder to achieve results.

Being available via a web-app means that local hardware resources are free from having to do the processing.

Extensive API calls mean that 1 Integrate can be seamlessly integrated with your existing systems.

Interface

This is the interface for 1 Integrate, read this page to understand how to navigate it and the required interactions.

Interface Sections



1. Header

The header shows the product logo on the left-hand side, while Service Status, account details and the log out option, are found on the right-hand side.

2. Sidebar

The sidebar allows you to navigate to the different tabs of 1Integrate. The upper half of the menu, directly under the 1Integrate logo, contains the core 1Integrate functionality, while the lower half contains the additional features of Administration, the Dashboard, Light/Dark Theme and a Documentation link.

3. Navigation Pane

This pane acts similarly to the file/folder tree structure of an operating system. Folders with contents can be expanded/collapsed if they have an expand/collapse arrow next to them. This can be navigated with the keyboard arrow keys; anything selected here will be displayed in the workspace (5) in the same way as if it had been clicked.

4. Workspace Toolbar

The workspace toolbar only appears in the workspace (5) when an item is open ie a Rule in the Rule builder. Across all workspaces the workspace toolbar contains standard information and tools for working on an item.

Item	Description				
Name	The name of the object that is selected				
Breadcrumbs	The path to that object				
Undo	This will step back through actions you have performed on an object from the point you opened it in this Session, including anything that has already been saved.				
Redo	This will step forward through actions you have undone on an object from the point you opened it in this Session, including anything that has already been saved.				
Description and Comments	Opens fields that allow for a Description and Comments to be added to the object. Both fields allow multiple lines of text.				
E	Best Practice:Making notes of any changes in the description helps to keep a "paper trail" if something needs reverting or if someone is using the Rule elsewhere.				
Created By/ Updated By	Shows the Username and Timestamp for when this object was created and for it's most recent update.				
Used By	Lists every object that this object is used in. Clicking one of these will open up that object.				
Save	Saves the current state of the current object.				

WORKSPACE TOOLBAR ITEMS

5. Workspace

The default workspace opens on the recent items tab with the last run sessions tab next to it.

If an item is open ie a Data Store, Rule, etc then the workspace displays the editor for that item.

If folders are selected in the navigation pane (3) then the contents of that folder will be displayed here.

Note: The folders do not need to be open in the side panel in order to show their contents in the workspace.

Recent Items lists objects that you recently interacted with. Last run sessions allow you to quickly reopen a session you recently ran.

If you have created any bookmarks through the Bookmark option in the context menu, then a Bookmarks tab will appear on the right.

6. Right-hand Panel

The right-hand panel appears in the workspace (5) in the Rules and Actions tabs. The panel shows the **Context** as well as information and parameters for the selected node.

Context Menu

Most elements of 1 Integrate offer a context menu when right-clicked. This gives specific options depending on the clicked element, which includes the items and folders as well as Rules, Actions etc.

Light and Dark Themes

1 Integrate is set to a light colour scheme by default.



1 Integrate default theme

1 Integrate can be changed to a dark theme with the Change to Dark Theme icon for higher contrast.

_						
	integrate					Ø active
	Rules C	; T	Docs_Example_Rule			n a 🗐 🛈 🚍 💽 SAVE
	Cocycle Bin Cocycle Bin Cocycle Bin Documentation Cocycle Bin Docs_Exa	mple_ 🕀 e				Connext Example_2
ŀ						
				Check That UILDING-geometry Atribute Value		
				Not Equals Null		
ŵ						
					*	
÷ċ;-						
0	1integrate MSINE-6411 optit dashboard US Patent Number 9542416 B2 (2017-01 UK Patent Number GB2517922	-10)				

1 Integrate default with the dark theme

Items and Folders

Objects: Items and folders are objects that can be created and modified within the <u>Navigation Pane</u>.

Note: Objects are selected by clicking them but **Ctrl** and **Shift** allow multiple objects to be selected at once.

Creating Objects

Objects can be added either by clicking an Add icon 庄 and choosing an item or folder to create, making your choice either in the main file path or inside a folder if one is selected. This can also be done via the context menu.

Moving, Copying, and Shortcuts

All objects can be moved and copied but items can also be duplicated in place.

To move objects quickly, click and drag the object over the folder you wish to put it in.

Note: Folders don't auto-expand, so if you want to place something inside a folder that isn't currently visible, the parent folder needs to be expanded first.

Alternatively, cut or copy the object and paste it to the new location. This can be done with a right click, or via the standard windows shortcuts: **Ctrl+X**, **Ctrl+C**, and **Ctrl+V** for cut, copy, and paste. Copied/cut objects are pasted into whichever folder is selected, or into the top level if nothing is selected. These also work for items within workspaces such as rules, though these can only be pasted within that same workspace.

Items can be duplicated via the context menu or with **Ctrl+D**. This creates a copy at the same level.

If an item has been copied, a shortcut can also be pasted instead. This allows access to specific items from elsewhere within the folder structure.

Bookmarks

Objects can be bookmarked by selecting the **Bookmark** option in the context menu of your chosen item or folder. Bookmarked objects will appear

under a "Bookmarks" tab in the <u>default workspace.</u> Once set, you can remove bookmarks by selecting **Unbookmark**.

Warning: Moving a bookmarked object will remove the bookmark.

Deleting and the Recycle Bin

Objects can be deleted with the **Delete** key, via the context menu, or dragged straight into the recycle bin. Objects will be deleted along with any child objects.

Items that are deleted will be sent to the recycle bin, where they will be stored until they are manually deleted. Anything with the same name will have a number appended to it ie New Folder and New Folder (1). This also includes the same name on different types of objects.

The recycle bin can be emptied from the recycle bin context menu. This can also be done from any other item or folder in the bin itself.

Emptying the bin permanently deletes all items and folders that are allowed to be deleted. Anything that is still currently in use outside of the bin will not be removed as part of the deletion. This includes items that are part of another item eg a rule that is part of a session or any item that has a shortcut.

Warning: The recycle bin is not shared between functions but it is shared by all users. If files that aren't yours exist in the recycle bin, you can permanently delete files individually

Focus/Unfocus

Objects in the navigation pane can be focused on using the **Focus** option in the context menu. This will show only the selected object and any child objects in the navigation pane, and hide all others.

Any folders that the focussed object is in will be shown in the breadcrumbs above it, which will be marked in purple to denote that it is in focus mode.

Focus can be removed by choosing the **Unfocus** option in the context menu.

Search and Filter

Objects in the navigation pane can also be searched and filtered by selecting the **Select Filters** funnel **T** at the top of the navigation pane, just below the Header.

Typing your chosen word will filter the selection of objects in the navigation pane.

Quickstart

This guide is designed as a whistle-stop tour for users, to show how a basic 1Integrate workflow is created and run. Each heading links to an explanation of that step in the process.

Note: For in-depth explanations of each feature of 1 Integrate please access the relevant sections from the table of contents.

General 1Integrate Flow

1 Integrate is a robust tool that can have workflows that take different shapes and sizes. All of these follow a similar basic structure to the five steps described below, while more complex Sessions may contain more Data Stores, Rules, and Actions.

"Create a Data Store" on page 15

Data Stores are where the data is held within 1 Integrate for access and configuration. They can be set to determine how 1 Integrate interprets the data for both inputs and outputs. This may be an input of one file type that is then outputted as another type at the end of the workflow.

"Create a Rule" on page 18

1 Integrate is a Rules-based tool that takes logical steps outlined within Rules (and Actions) to perform validation on the Data.

Rules are built to validate for specific outcomes or conditions, creating reports and filtering data to show non-conformances.

"Create an Action" on page 21

Actions are set up and built in the same way as Rules. However, Actions are used to add, transform, remove, or report on data. They can also be paired with Rules in an Action Map to filter the data before the Action runs.

"Create a Session" on page 24

Sessions are a collection of ordered Tasks that execute a particular type of instruction. Tasks include things like opening a Data Store for other tasks to get access to the Data within, or running the Rules and Actions that validate or interact with the data. These Tasks activate sequentially and it's important to understand how each Task will affect others in the Session.

"Run a Session" on page 27

Running Sessions will execute the Tasks in order. The Session controls allow Tasks to be paused and for the Session to be rewound and edited if necessary before running again.

Finished Sessions allow users to view the outcomes of each Task, which includes viewing reports from Rules and Actions, downloading data, or viewing data on the Map Viewer.

Create a Data Store

Data Stores allow 1 Integrate to connect the data that you want to use to the Rules, Actions and other parts of 1 Integrate. Configuring a Data Store may often be the first step in a workflow, as it will make configuration of the latter steps easier.

1 i	integrate 🗴 Warming 🗸 🛞															
	Data Stores	C	T <	Docs	In ~ ■ ① III SAVE											
	Buildings CG tests			Folder Content	Path											
Er	Dwg resting - curus Development Doce	(Worked_Examples	DATASTORE://Docs/Worked_Examples/											
Þ	Worked_Examples		5	New Folder	DATASTORE://Docs/Ben_Test											
	Create A Data Store								_ =				=			DATASTORE://Docs/Create A Data Store
	Example_DataStore			Documentation_Example	DATASTORE://Docs/Documentation_Example											
	Index_store1			Example_DataStore	DATASTORE://Docs/Example_DataStore											
	Index_store3											Example_DataStore1	DATASTORE://Docs/Example_DataStore1			
567	JSON MapInfo			Index_store1	DATASTORE://Docs/Index_store1											
	Nav_Test			Index_store2	DATASTORE://Docs/Index_store2											
G	New Data Store		Ŧ	Index_store3	DATASTORE://Docs/Index_store3											
0	Integrate 5.1.0-SNAPSHOT US Patent Number 9542416 82 (2017-01-10) UK Patent Number 9542416 82			Inheritance Data Store	DATASTORE://Docs/Inheritance Data Store											

1. In the folder structure on the **Data Store** tab, click the **Add** button 🛨 and name your Data Store.

Each Data Store needs to be configured for at least one of the two settings: Read and Commit, or Copy To.

Read and Commit will use the same settings for reading the data as it will for any committing of that data. This includes the format as well as any settings, like character encoding or CRS override.

Copy To allows a Data Store to output data into a different Data Store type (format/file type), with some options for settings too. Not all Data Store types are supported for Copy To.

 As soon as a new Data Store is added you will have to choose the file type. Pick the required type and the panel will update with all the relevant configuration settings.

1	ntegrate				4	🛛 Warning 👻	
	Data Stores Index_store1	G A G	uickstart Data Store Docs > 🗮 Quickstart Data Store		in a 🗐 (SAVE
C⊾ ⊡	Index_store3 Inheritance Data Store JSON		Configure Data Store for Read and Commit	_		C D	; Y
Þ	Mapinfo Nav_Test Network Store New Data Store		Data Store Type Fixed Schema	•			
	New Data Store 1 New Data Store 2 Quickstart Data Store	ŧ	Fixed Schema Type	•			
	Schema Only Inheritance Temp_var1 Unmodified_Values Version_Test		TEST CONNECTION	CLOSE			
\$ <u>3</u>	EMS EssentialNetwork						
	Exception Handling HS2_DAG HS2_DAG DEV						
?	Integrate 5.1.0-SNAPSHOT US Paston Number 9542416 82 (2017-01-10)						

3. Upload the source file(s) by clicking the **Upload** button \triangle and picking your file(s). Or, if you are connecting to a external database, enter the required details.

1	ntegrate								Varning 🥆	٢
	Data Stores	C T Quick	Configure D	Data Store for Read and Commit			5			SAVE
Ó		▲—	OGC Geo	Package		-				
6		REA	- Source Files	s (.apkg)						\$ Y
Lĸ	Inheritance Data Store		Exampl	Upload Data Store file		()				
E			Commit							
Þ					Ô					
	Network Store		Coordin			<u>(</u>)				
	New Data Store		Allov	Example_Geopackage.gpkg						
			Enab							
		+	🔽 Fix ri							
	Schema Only Inheritance									
			For X, Y			U				
			🗌 Reta	CANCEL	LIPLOAD					
~~	- + 🗀 EMS		Fixed Sch		01 2010	U				
225	EssentialNetwork EssentialNetwork EssentialNetwork		- Fixed Sch			-				
iil 🛛	→ □ HS2_DAG					•				
Cy.	- ▶ □ HS2_DAG DEV					CLOSE				
	Integrate S.1.0-SNAPSHOT									
?										

4. Complete any remaining configuration and then close the panel. Click the Refresh button ${f C}$ to load the Schema Mapping.

1 ir	tegrate		▲ Warning ✔ ②
;	Quickstart Data Store □ Docs → ■ Quickstart Data Store		In ∩ ■ () := ■ SAVE
	READ AND COMMIT COPY TO OGC GeoPackage Exam	ple_Geopackage.gpkg	С 🌣 🔻
	Source	Target	Ô
e	BUILDING	BUILDING	Ô
Ľ	CURBLINE	CURBLINE	Ô
	FIRE_STATION	FIRE_STATION	Ō
	POLITICALWARD	POLITICALWARD	Ō
	☑ → ROAD	ROAD	Ô
	ZONING	ZONING	Ô
र्द्ध		Custom Class 🛨	
1:1			
G			
?			

The Schema Mapping is how the Classes and Attributes within the chosen data is understood within 1 Integrate.

The Data Store can now be accessed by Rules, Actions, and Sessions.

Create a Rule

Rules are about validating data. Most workflows will contain at least one Rule that will validate the data from a Data Store. Rules (and Actions) are best suited to focusing on a single set of conditions, rather than trying to complete all data validation in a single Rule.

<mark>[1</mark>]	ntegrate				🛆 Warning 💙 🛞
	Rules	C	T <	Docs	
	Advanced Training Rules BuildingChecks Buildings		A=	Folder Content	Path
EV	CG CG Curtis DWG Testing		1	Version_Rules	RULE://Docs/Version_Rules/
Þ	DEVELOPMENT Data Aggregation			Worked_Examples	RULE://Docs/Worked_Examples/
	- Development			Cast_check	RULE://Docs/Cast_check
	Version_Rules Worked Examples	t		New Folder	RULE://Docs/Connectivity Islands
	Cast_check		Ê	New Rule Template	RULE://Docs/Create a Rule
	Create a Rule			Doc_test	RULE://Docs/Doc_test
~~~	Example_Rule			Example_Rule	RULE://Docs/Example_Rule
रुः	Index1			Firestation 1.0	RULE://Docs/Firestation 1.0
C,	Index3			🖸 Index1	RULE://Docs/Index1
?	Integrate 5.1.0-SNAPSHOT US Patent Number 0542416 82 (2017-01-10) UK Patent Number 0542417932		-	Index2	RULE://Docs/Index2

1. In the folder structure on the **Rules** tab, click the **Add** button 🛨 and name your Rule.

As the Data Store has been set up, it can be connected to the Rule via the Context at the top of the Right Hand Panel. This links the data in the Data Store to the Rule, allowing the classes and attributes within the data to be referenced.

2. Click the **Context** to open the Data Store selection and choose the Data Store that you created.

<b>1</b> integrate			🛆 Warning 🗸 (2)
Create a Rule Docs - D Create a Rule C All objects Predicate	Context  Available	Selected  Commentation_Example	Context Context Docs/Documentation_Example
	CANCEL		SELECT

Each Rule is built up from a series of logic nodes that branch out horizontally from left to right. These nodes are the visual blocks of code logic that 1Integrate utilises. Having any coding experience should make Rule (and Action) building feel familiar.

By default the purple, Root node designates what objects the Rule is built for. It helps to specify what object is the focus if there is one as it will restrict processing only to that object and any others referenced in the Rule itself. This means fewer objects to process, which often means less time spent processing the Rule.

<b>1</b> integrate		🛦 Warning 🖌 🙆
Create a Rule	2	∽ 🗏 🛈 ≔ 💽 SAVE
Rule For     predicate       All objects     Predicate		Context Classes BUILDING
		CURBLINE FIRE_STATION
		ROAD
		Standard Classes
		All Geometric All Non-Geometric
	\$	System Classes Connectivity Network
		Edge Face
	+	Node Singleton

3. Click the Root node and select the Class you want to run the logic against.

Each node that is available has to be of a certain type: a Predicate which defines the type of check, a Relation which evaluates two Values, or a Value of a particular attribute. Clicking on a node displays the options for that node, allowing the Rule to be built up quickly using only "correct" logic.

4. Add nodes to create the logic that you want from the Rule until all the required nodes and optional nodes that you need are filled in.

1 integrate			🛆 Warning 💙
Create a Rule			
📩 🗀 Docs 🦻 Create a Rule	Test	Î	
	Check That		Context
Rule For     FIRE_STATION of	Bjects		Docs/Documentation_Example
	Test in Range		
	Static		
Þ	Cast		
	False		
	True		
	Branch		
	Execute then Check		
	IfThenElse		
	TryCatch		
	Template		
	Rule Template		
<b>校</b>	Collection		<b>(</b>
	Existence in Collection	Check that there are an expected number of elements that match the nested predicate	
	For All in Collection		
G	Boolean		+
0	AND		

5. Click the **Save** button in the top right of the screen. This Rule is then ready for use with Actions or as a standalone Rule within a Session.

[]integrate	🛕 Warning 👻 🙁
Create a Rule	In a E G III III III SAVE
V         Rule For FIRE_STATION objects         V         Existence         V         Check That         BUILDING:geometry           Arritude Value         Arritude Value         Satial Contains         Satial Contains         Satial Contains	Context Docs/Documentation_Example
Er Fire_STATION:.geometry	
	*
	22
	+

## **Create an Action**

Actions are built in the same way as Rules are and can contain validation logic as well. However, their main purpose is to change, create, or report on data. Actions are still best when kept to their own purpose and can be paired with a Rule to filter out objects that don't need to be processed by the Action.

<b>1</b> i	integrate 🛛 🛆 Warning 🗸 (2)								
	Actions C T	<	Docs	IN CH II II SAVE					
	the second	Î	Folder Content	Path					
L× ⊡∕	IntBasicCG     ATKIS-Gen Karto Generalisation		Urrsion_Actions	ACTION://Docs/Version_Actions/					
Þ	ATKIS-Gen Model Generalisation     Acceptance Tests		Worked_Examples	ACTION://Docs/Worked_Examples/					
	BuildingChecks     Buildings		Create an Action	ACTION://Docs/Create an Action					
	- > 🗀 CG - > 🗀 Data Aggregation		C IndexAction1	ACTION://Docs/IndexAction1					
	- ▼ Docs 🕑	C.	New Folder	ACTION://Docs/IndexAction2					
	Worked_Examples     Create an Action	D.	New Action	ACTION://Docs/Line Networks					
~	IndexAction1		Line and Point Networks	ACTION://Docs/Line and Point Networks					
200 []	Line Networks		New Action 1	ACTION://Docs/New Action 1					
G	Report FireStation	-	C Report FireStation	ACTION://Docs/Report FireStation					
0	Imagrate 5.1.0-SNAPSHOT US Patent Number 9542416 82 (2017-01-10)		C Split Report	ACTION://Docs/Split Report					

1. In the folder structure on the **Actions** tab, click the **Add** button 🛨 and name your Action.

Actions can be built with the assumption that a Rule will already have filtered out unwanted any objects. This means that Predicate logic doesn't necessarily need to make it's way into an Action and you can focus on using Operations instead.

2. Click **Context** to open the Data Store selection and choose the Data Store that you created.

<b>fi</b> integrate			🛆 Warning 🗸 🙁
Create an Action Docs - L Create an Action Action For Att objects  perstion  perstion	Context  Available	Selected  Create A Data Store	Contest Docs/Create A Data Store
	CANCEL		SELECT

3. Click the **Root** node and select the Class you want to run the logic against.

	1integrate 🖉 🖉						
	Create an Action	<u>م</u>	≈ 🗐 () ≔ 💽 SAVE				
Ŵ							
D.	Action For     operation     operation		Context Classes				
EV			BUILDING				
			FIRE STATION				
Ľ			POLITICALWARD				
			ROAD				
			ZONING				
			Standard Classes				
			All				
			All Geometric				
			All Non-Geometric				
			System Classes				
ক্ষ		\$	Connectivity Network				
.:1		22	Edge				
4			Face				
G		+	Node				
?			Singleton				

As with Rules, you will build up Actions node by node to create the logic you need for the data. Best practice is the same as with Rules, where you should be keeping them focused on a particular purpose rather than trying to do everything, all at once.

Actions will have similar choices for nodes, though Operations named similarly to Predicates will use Operations instead of or as well as Predicates in their child nodes.

If you want to create Actions that utilise Rules for filtering, then you can opt to not create filtering in the Action and use the filtering from a Rule. This requires you to create an Action Map as well to choose the pairings of Rules and Actions.

4. Add nodes to create the logic that you want from the Action until all the required nodes and optional nodes that you need are filled in.

<b>1</b> integrate				<mark>▲ Warning ▼</mark> (2)
Create an Action	Static	Î	5	■ (i) := 💽 SAVE
Action For     FIRE_STATION objects	Cast Built-In Built in Operation			Context Docs/Create A Data Store
	Branch			
	IfThenElse TryCatch			
	Template			
	Assignment			
	Assignment Loop			
	Break For Loop			
۵¢	Loop Over a Collection or Geometry	l	\$	
	Loop Over Nearest Objects Loop Over Objects			
G	Sequence While Loop		+	
0	while roop	<b>v</b>		

5. Click the **Save** button in the top right of the screen. This Action is then ready for use by itself or in an Action Map within a Session.



## Create a Session

Sessions are a series of Tasks that are completed in sequence. These Tasks include opening Data Stores (loading the data), running Rules or Actions, or committing data to a Data Store (writing the data to a specified place).

1	ntegrate							Warning 🗸 🔿	9
	Sessions	¢	<b>T</b>	<	Docs		~ ~ E ()	) 📰 🐻 SAVE	E
	Recycle Bin     T Empty	Ŀ			Folder Content		Path		
E	→ 1IntBasicCG				Create a Session		SESSION://Docs/Create a Session		Î
Þ	Acceptance Tests     Ashish Practice				Disabled_task		SESSION://Docs/Disabled_task		
	BuildingChecks      Buildings      Co				Docs_Template		SESSION://Docs/Docs_Template		Ľ
	→ CoServ      → DWG Testing - Curtis				Firestations		SESSION://Docs/Firestations		L
	- > Development		Ð		New Session		SESSION://Docs/New Session		L
	Create a Session     Disabled_task			•	New Folder New Session		SESSION://Docs/New Session 2		L
錼	Firestations			6	New Session Task Template Precord Replay		SESSION://Docs/Record Replay		
	New Session 1     New Session 2				E S1 - Action to Report, Move and Create M	issing Fire station features	SESSION://Docs/S1 - Action to Report, Move and Create	Missing Fire station f	
0	Integrate 5.1.0-SNAPSHOT US Patent Number 9542416 82 (2017-01-10) UK Patent Number 052517932			*	E Scalar Values		SESSION://Docs/Scalar Values		ł

- 1. In the folder structure on the **Session** tab, click the **Add** button **H** and name your Session.
- 2. Click **New** to add a Task, selecting whichever Task Type you need from the list. This will often begin with the Open Data Task which will give other Tasks in the Session access to the specified Data Store.

	lintegrate 🛆 Warning 🗸 (2)											
	> Create a	Session						2	đ	■ (;	) :=	SAVE
	+	NEW < 🕨	Not Started	\$								
		Open Data	ion									
E~		Open Schema			No tasks to di	splay yet						
Þ	e,	Build Topology										
	Ń	Check Rules										
	Ľ,	Apply Actions										
	E~	Apply Action Map										
	Ľó	Session Task Template										
	17	Transform Schema										
	=×	Validate Schema										
		Pause										
	•	Commit										
錼		Сору То										
1:1												
G												
?												

A basic Session would include the following Tasks, in order: Open Data, Check Rules, Apply Action, Commit, Pause. These would enable the Data Store for use in the Session, run Rules against the data, apply Actions against the data, and then write the data back to the original Data Store.

Pause Tasks are used to stop a Session from progressing without further manual input. This is usually to keep a Session "open" allowing the reports and other features to be accessed before the Session is closed.

They can also be used to create checkpoints where the data can be assessed before continuing the Session, or to be able to set "checkpoints" to fix any possible errors without restarting the entire Session.

3. Each Task is configured when it is created but can be reconfigured later on. This includes advanced features such as Rules filtering and Record Replay.

1	lintegrate (A Warning Y (2)								
	Create a Session			۲	<b>c</b> ~		i	:=	SAVE
	+ NEW 🔫	Not Starte	•						
Lk	Name	Configuration	Edit Check Rules						
<b>.</b>	🗹 🗮 Open Data	Create A Data Store All Classes	Rules					ľ	Ô
Þ	Check Rules	Create a Rule				1	• •	ľ	Ô
			Filter Rule						
			Non Spatial Filter						
			Record Replay						
			CANCEL CONFIRM						
慾									
.:1									
G									
?									

4. Continue to add new Tasks to include all the steps your Session needs to take.

<mark>1</mark> i	ntegrate					A w	arning	<mark>~)</mark> @
	Create a Session     Docs →      Create a Session		2	đ		i	:=	SAVE
	+ NEW	Not Started						
Lĸ	Name	Configuration						
≣ <b>∽</b>	🗹 🗮 Open Data	Ereate A Data Store All Classes					0*	Ô
Þ	Check Rules	Create a Rule					11	Ô
	Apply Actions	Create an Action					1ª	Ô
	Apply Action Map	New Action Mag					01	Ô
	Commit	Eccete A Data Store All Classes					1	Ô
	✓    Pause				1	• •	ľ	Ô
錼								
<b>;;</b> ]								
G								
?								

Tasks can be moved by clicking and dragging them into the position in the Session needed or by clicking Up  $\uparrow$  and Down  $\downarrow$  on a selected Task. This can be done to unprocessed Tasks even when a Session is paused.

The Session is now set up and ready to be run.

## Run a Session

Sessions are simple to build and simple to run. Once a Session is complete it is ready to run, and then to be evaluated.

<mark>[]</mark> ii	ntegrate					(A w	'arning '	<ul> <li> <ul> <li></li></ul></li></ul>
	Create a Session		2	đ		i	:=	SAVE
	+ NEW 🔫	Not Started						
L.K	Name	Configuration						
E~	🗹 🗮 Open Data	Ecreate A Data Store All Classes					05	Ô
Þ	Check Rules	Create a Rule					11	Ô
	Apply Actions	Create an Action					1ª	Ô
	Apply Action Map	New Action Map					0	Ô
	Commit	Ereate A Data Store All Classes					1.	Ô
	🗹    Pause				1	• •	ľ	Ô
錼								
.:1								
G								
?								

1. On a Session with at least one Task, click the **Play** button **b** to begin running the Session.

You can see the progress of the Session by the colours on the left side of each Task as well as the status symbol on the right hand side of the Task. The Status symbol will be a tick on finished Tasks, which also enables the reports and the map viewer.

All Rules and Actions have built in reports that give a break down of the number of processed objects.

<mark>[]</mark> i	lintegrate 🖉 🖉 Warning 🗸								
	Create a Session								
	+ NEW ••	Finished (with map)	S 🔟 VIEW MAP						
Lκ	Name	Configuration	Results						
≣∽	🗹 🗮 Open Data	Create A Data Store All Classes	Processed 14249 🖹 🖽 🗸						
Þ	Check Rules	Create a Rule	Processed Conformance 83.33%						
	Apply Actions	C: Create an Action	6 Processed 2						
	Apply Action Map	New Action Map	Processed Conformance Applied 1						
	Commit	Create A Data Store All Classes							
	II Pause		н						
錼									
1:1									
G									
?									

2. Click the **Results** button 🕒 to view the reports.

3. To view the summary click **Show Summary** or click **Show Report** to view the auto-generated or custom reports.

1	lintegrate						
-	Tas	k Report			:	×	
	Start Dura Repo	ted: December 13th 2024, 5:57:48 pm tion: 2 seconds 169 milliseconds rrts		Objects Processed: 6 Errors: 0	DOWNLOAD RESULTS	3 <b>•</b>	
	Туре						
Ŀ		FIRE_STATION 2 (2)				0	
	Đ	Create an Action	Fire Stations	MKT ST 35 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL			
		FIRE_STATION 3 (3)				$\bigcirc$	
	Ð	Create an Action	Fire Stations	BROAD ST 41 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL		Ш ^s	
						T	

Reports show all the basic information for the Rule or Action that was run with the results for each object that meet the requirements. For bespoke reports this will include any information that you specified within the reporting Action.

For Sessions that use spatial data, Maps can be viewed from both Tasks that allow it in the main Session or within a report for direct access to a specific object. Maps contain all objects within a Data Store and present all that data visually, with changes to the data being updated depending on which Task is being viewed in the Map.

4. Click the **Map** button III next to a Task or an Object in the Report to open the Map.

Tintegrate							
Create a Session Status: Finished (with map)	Object Details	×	TASKS/LAYERS REPORTS				
	Geometry	Q	Class FIRE_STATION				
	ACTIVE	null	Gothic Id 5				
	BC	0	🛕 🗹 Create a Rule 💽				
	DEPT	FIRE	there is at least 1 BUILDING object				
	ENG	20	for which BUILDING.geometry contains FIRE_STATION.geometry				
	fid	5					
	FIRESTA_	20					
	ID	57					
	LAD	23					
	LOCATION	N 10TH ST & CHERRY ST					
	MED	1					
	OBJECT_ID	[160,0,5]					
G C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	RAD	S					
	SITE_NAME	CHERRY ST	PREVIOUS 1/1 NEXT				



In order to get to grips with 1Integrate, it is important to understand a few basic concepts and terms used within the product:

## Α

### Action

An Action is a procedure or process to be applied to one or more objects, when they are found to violate an associated Rule. For example, an Action could modify a geometry or attribute in order to fix it.

### B

### **Built-in**

Extensions, which can include custom "built-ins" can be added to 1Integrate to extend existing functionality.

### **Built-in Function**

A built-in function is a Predicate Value that returns a value calculated from one or more Value nodes.

### **Built-in Operation**

A built-in operation is an Operation Value that returns a value calculated from one or more Values nodes.

## С

### Child Node

A node extending from another node.

### Conformance/Non-Conformance

Terms used to identify when a feature does/does not obey logic within a Rule or Action.

## D

### **Data Store**

A Data Store is an external source of data (expected to be geographic data). Rules are applied to data drawn from one or more Data Stores.

### Ε

### Extension

Extensions, which can include custom "built-ins" can be added to 11ntegrate to extend existing functionality.

#### Extent

An extent is the selected area on which any validation checks will be run. By default this is set to the entire dataset, however this can be altered using the draw tool.

### F

#### Feature

A generic term for items within a table or file geodatabase. Interchangeable with Object.

### Folder

A folder is a logical grouping of Rules or Actions. The 1Integrate interface mimics the Windows File Explorer interface, using a tree of folders and sub-folders to store Rules and Actions. 1Integrate folders do not correspond directly to file-system directories.

## G

### **Grid Processing**

Grid processing allows 1 Integrate to take advantage of the resources of multi-core machines and multiple machines. As a result, 1 Integrate is a scalable system. If more processing power is needed, it can be added easily by adding more hardware resources to the grid.

### Ν

### **Name Parameter**

Uniquely identifies objects in the same class that are tested against each other in clauses and sub-clauses of a rule.

#### Node

The basic unit within a logic tree

#### Null

A "Value Node" that always evaluates as null.

## 0

### Object

A generic term for items within a table or file geodatabase. Interchangeable with Feature

### **Object or Element**

Value nodes representing objects or elements from a collection; used to access a whole object/feature directly or access and element when loopng through a collection or array.

### Operation

An operation is a high level component of an action, which determines the primary function of the action.

## Ρ

### **Parent Node**

A node from which other nodes extend.

### Predicate

A Predicate is a high-level, logical test that defines the syntax for a Rule.

### **Predicate Node**

A high-level, logical test that defines the syntax for a Rule or Action; common Predicates used are Comparison, And, Or, Existence, IF..THEN..ELSE, and For All.

## R

### Relationship

Compares any two values and returns a result of true or false.

### **Root Node**

The highest node in a logic tree; within 1 Integrate, this node defines which feature class will be evaluated within the logic.

### Rule

Rules identify a group of features based on sets of logical expressions.

## S

### Scalar

A Relationshop that compares two value (boolean, integers, real numbers, dates, or strings).

### Session

A session is a sequence of tasks that describe a workflow. For example, open data from one or more data sources, check conformance against

selected rules, apply rule-based transformations to resolve problems, and commit the changes to the original data source(s).

### **Spatial**

A type of relationship only applied to geometry values.

### **Static Value**

A "Value Node" with a fixed value such as boolean, integer, string, real or timestamp.

### Т

### Task

A task is an abstraction referring to some process applied to data from a Data Store. Specific tasks performed by 1Integrate include "Open Data", "Check Rules", "Apply Action" and "Commit Data". A task may take seconds, minutes, hours, or days. Therefore it executes asynchronously, so that the user can monitor progress and abort sessions. Tasks continue processing even if the user who started them logs out or shuts down the client computer. All status values and reports associated with the task are retained.

## V

### Value

A value is a constant, a reference to objects or a calculation. They are compared using a relationship.

### Value Node

A constant, a reference to objects or a calculation.